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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Good morning.

          3  Welcome. Today the Committee on Youth Services will hold

          4  a hearing on proposed Resolution 890-A, which calls upon

          5  Congress and President to maintain federal funding of

          6  the Community Service Block Grant, CSBG, and to renew

          7  our Nation's commitment to combat poverty, ameliorate

          8  racial and ethnic inequality and empower low-income

          9  communities.

         10                 Additionally, this Committee will conduct

         11  an oversight investigation into proposed federal

         12  cutbacks to the CSBG program, and how such cuts will

         13  affect New York City.

         14                 At this time I'd like to thank Council

         15  Member Miguel Martinez, who is the prime sponsor for

         16  Reso 890-A, and who has been at the forefront to

         17  bringing this critical issue to the attention of this

         18  Committee.

         19                 As we meet here today, the Bush

         20  Administration's proposed federal Fiscal Year 2006

         21  budget would eliminate CSBG and destroy an anti-poverty

         22  program that has actually met its mission to combat the

         23  effects of poverty.

         24                 We here in the City of New York must go

         25  on record and opposition to these outrageous cutbacks.
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          2  We have little time to waste. The federal budget process

          3  is in motion.

          4                 Recently non-binding budget resolutions

          5  that passed both the House and the Senate, have failed

          6  to clarify the eventual fate of this most important

          7  program.

          8                 CSBG is a success story. Over the years

          9  it has funded some of our most worthwhile social

         10  programs.

         11                 Thanks to CSBG low-income New Yorkers

         12  have had the opportunity to learn needed job skills,

         13  take English as a second language courses and acquired

         14  the skills needed to pass GED exams.

         15                 CSBG has succeeded because it gives

         16  providers the flexibility to allocate program dollars to

         17  the areas in which they are most needed.

         18                 In addition, CSBG is part and parcel of

         19  the neighborhood development area process, which

         20  includes neighborhood advisory board input.

         21                 NDA has allowed for broad community input

         22  into the CSBG program, ensuring that we spend

         23  anti-poverty money where it is most effective and it is

         24  most needed. And further concern that the so-called

         25  consolidation of the CSBG program could be disastrous
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          2  for NDA's and neighborhood advisory boards.

          3                 Let me take this opportunity to

          4  personally go on record in opposition to any attempt by

          5  the Bush Administration and its congressional allies to

          6  cutback, eliminate, or as they would term it,

          7  consolidate CSBG.

          8                 Consolidation is a euphemism for cut. It

          9  doesn't hide it, it doesn't change it, it doesn't make

         10  it hurt any less.

         11                 The Bush Administration proposed cuts to

         12  CSBG would have a devastating impact on New York City

         13  and other urban areas.

         14                 Regarding the future of CSBG, as the

         15  saying goes, "if it aint' broke, don't fix it."

         16                 At this hearing we will hear from a

         17  number of advocates who will deliver testimony regarding

         18  the positive impact that CSBG programs have had on

         19  low-income people in our City.

         20                 We will also hear from DYCD, and I am

         21  personally very interested to hear what steps our City

         22  Administration has taken to assure that this most

         23  worthwhile program is taken off the federal chopping

         24  block.

         25                 We are joined this morning by Committee
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          2  staff and by Council Members Gerson and Martinez, and at

          3  this time I would like to yield the floor to Council

          4  Member Martinez, who has a few words to say on this

          5  topic.

          6                 Council Member.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chair. I want to thank you for your leadership on this

          9  issue and for ensuring that the Committee takes up this

         10  issue and that this Council address this critical issue

         11  before our community.

         12                 As you know, just in 2004, New York City

         13  received $30.6 million from CSBG dollars, and the impact

         14  of not receiving these dollars in the City of New York

         15  in our communities will mean that over 200

         16  community-based organizations depend on these dollars

         17  for services they provide in our community to combat

         18  poverty will be impacted, which means 113,000 New

         19  Yorkers will be suffering.

         20                 So, I want to commend you for your

         21  leadership and understanding the importance that this

         22  Committee address the issue immediately, and that we

         23  send a message from the New York City Council to our

         24  congressional delegation and to the Administration of

         25  President Bush, that at a crucial time in New York City
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          2  when we're recuperating and when our economy, it seems

          3  to be coming back still in our community we need this

          4  help to ensure that recuperation reaches our community,

          5  and it is a crucial role that these dollars plays in the

          6  lives of hundreds of thousands of children and families

          7  throughout the City of New York.

          8                 So, again, thank you. And I want to thank

          9  the co-sponsors of this resolution for supporting and

         10  understanding that we have to take this message to

         11  Washington as soon as possible.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you, Council

         13  member. And before we go to our first panel, I want to

         14  recognize and introduce our newest Committee member,

         15  Council Member Arroyo from the Bronx.

         16                 And Carmen, we have a lot of fun at this

         17  Committee and we do a lot of important work. So, I'm

         18  very happy to have you with us, and I look forward to

         19  your contribution to our efforts on behalf of not only

         20  children but the anti-poverty programs that we're going

         21  to be talking about today and those efforts.

         22                 This hearing I guess is somewhat atypical

         23  in that ordinarily the Youth Services Committee

         24  restricts itself to issues that are exclusively in the

         25  province of youth services. However, this Committee also
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          2  has oversight over DYCD, which is the agency that

          3  administers the funds that are delivered largely,

          4  administers the funds that are delivered to the City of

          5  New York through CSBG and that is why this resolution

          6  has come to this Committee today.

          7                 We are joined by Council Member Simcha

          8  Felder. Thank you, Council Member.

          9                 And so our first panel is DYCD, and we

         10  are joined by Assistant Commissioner Cindy Colter,

         11  Deputy Commissioner Suzanne Lynn, and David John

         12  Barrier, from DYCD. The mic is yours.

         13                 And I did not see Council Member Vann

         14  come in, to my right.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: Good morning.

         16  My name is Suzanne Lynn, Deputy Commissioner for

         17  Community Development for the New York City Department

         18  of Youth and Community Development. I am joined by Cindy

         19  Colter, Assistant Commissioner for Program Operations

         20  and Barriera, Director of the NAB CAB Liaison Unit.

         21                 On behalf of Commissioner Mullgrav, I

         22  want to thank you for this opportunity to discuss the

         23  work at DYCD in connection with the Community Services

         24  Block Grant, or CSBG. Because of the current threat to

         25  the survival of the program at the federal level.
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          2                 CSBG is an important part of the City's

          3  safety net, and the Bloomberg Administration is working

          4  hard to preserve it.

          5                 CSBG is a federal anti-poverty block

          6  grant, which provides flexible federal funding to states

          7  and localities for a broad range for community-based

          8  programs to combat poverty, provide emergency services

          9  to low-income people, and empower people to achieve

         10  self-sufficiency, which leads to revitalizing low-income

         11  neighborhoods.

         12                 CSBG is currently under the auspices of

         13  the United States Department of Health and Human

         14  Services. The New York State Department of State,

         15  Division of Community Services, administers the New York

         16  State CSBG program overall.

         17                 As the designated community action agency

         18  for New York City, DYCD administers CSBG locally.

         19                 CSBG is built on the foundation of

         20  maximum feasible community participation. The hallmark

         21  of CSBG is that low-income communities help determine

         22  the priorities for funding in their neighborhoods.

         23                 This level of civic engagement is

         24  supported by DYCD's Citywide overside board, the

         25  community action board, or CAB, and a network of 43
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          2  neighborhood advisory boards or NABs, each one

          3  representing a low-income neighborhood in the City

          4  eligible for CSBG funding.

          5                 In 2003, DYCD embarked on a redesign of

          6  the CSBG program. Specifically we began reinvigorating

          7  the CABs and the NABs to fully engage them in a

          8  dialogue, on how CSBG funds should be spent.

          9                 We also reviewed the latest poverty data

         10  to understand the demographic changes that occurred over

         11  the past decade. In order to more accurately pinpoint

         12  those low-income areas eligible for CSBG funding.

         13                 To this end, DYCD contracted with two

         14  well-known demographers in the field of poverty, John

         15  Mollencov and John Logan, to develop a methodology for

         16  identifying those low-income areas or neighborhood

         17  development areas, NDAs.

         18                 Once the NDAs were designated, DYCD

         19  worked with the NABs in each of the areas to conduct a

         20  needs assessment to determine funding priorities.

         21                 This process was comprised of public

         22  hearings and neighborhood surveys, as well as analyses

         23  of community profile information supplied from census

         24  data.

         25                 With the redesignation of NDAs and data
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          2  from the needs assessments, DYCD released a request for

          3  proposals in August 2004 that targets CSBG resources to

          4  high-need areas throughout the City.

          5                 In New York City, CSBG funds are used to

          6  contract with approximately 200 community-based

          7  organizations, which support programs for approximately

          8  113,000 individuals and families in low-income

          9  neighborhoods throughout the five boroughs.

         10                 In Fiscal Year 2004, New York City

         11  received approximately $30.6 million in federal CSBG

         12  funds. The City contributed $7.6 million in matching tax

         13  levy funds.

         14                 With this funding, the community-based

         15  organizations were able to leverage an additional $24

         16  million in financial resources, and recruited volunteer

         17  services worth approximately $42 million to compliment

         18  this program.

         19                 Some examples of CSBG levels of services

         20  in CSBG programs last year include adult literacy and

         21  GED programs for 2,700 individuals to improve their

         22  language and academic skills, immigrant and refugee

         23  assistance for 12,500 immigrants to receive legal

         24  assistance, English for speakers of other languages

         25  classes and citizenship preparation.
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          2                 Domestic violence intervention and

          3  prevention for 2,600 victims to secure a safe

          4  environment, employment assistance for 7,000 youth and

          5  adults to obtain and retain a job, housing assistance

          6  for 10,400 families to attain safe and affordable

          7  housing and to prevent homelessness, older adult

          8  services for 8,700 seniors to receive care giver health

          9  and wellness and cultural and recreational activities to

         10  prevent personal isolation, and youth leadership for

         11  10,000 disadvantaged youth, to enable them to succeed in

         12  school through tutoring and academic enrichment

         13  programs.

         14                 On February 7th, 2005, President Bush

         15  released the Fiscal Year 2006 Executive Budget. This

         16  budget proposes to consolidate 18 existing community and

         17  economic development programs into the Strengthening

         18  America's Communities' Initiative to be administered by

         19  the US Department of Commerce.

         20                 Included in the proposed consolidation is

         21  CSBG. We are concerned about this for at least two

         22  reasons: First, CSBG's primary focus is on human

         23  services programs that enable low-income people to

         24  become self-sufficient, which is not the core mission of

         25  the Department of Commerce.
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          2                 The Department of Commerce's province is

          3  that of bricks and mortar community development.

          4                 For that reason, the US Department of

          5  Health and Human Services remains the appropriate agency

          6  to oversee the administration of CSBG.

          7                 Second, the 18 programs proposed for

          8  consolidation are currently funded at a combined $5.6

          9  billion. Under the White House proposal, the new

         10  initiative would be funded at only $3.7 billion. The new

         11  block grant would thus represent approximately one-third

         12  less funding.

         13                 With competition for funding among the 18

         14  components of the proposed new block grant and a shift

         15  in focus, it is uncertain that CSBG would survive at

         16  all.

         17                 The cost of CSBG programs is small,

         18  relative to the benefits that they yield to low-income

         19  communities. The aim of CSBG is to empower low-income

         20  individuals to maintain self-sufficiency.

         21                 CSBG offers disconnected youth job

         22  readiness and training assistance so that they may

         23  become a productive young adult and members of the labor

         24  force.

         25                 It enables parents to work because they
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          2  can rely on after school programs for their children. It

          3  provides seniors with unfixed incomes, with healthy

          4  meals and a supportive social environment, which allows

          5  them to live independently and longer. And it gives

          6  victims of domestic violence a safe haven so that they

          7  can live violence-free.

          8                 The proposed federal budget jeopardizes

          9  the well-being of the people and the communities the

         10  CSBG programs are designed to serve.

         11                 From the outset, the preservation of CSBG

         12  has been a top priority for Mayor Bloomberg. He has

         13  committed the resources of his Legislative Affairs

         14  Office in Washington to work with Senators, members of

         15  Congress, White House officials, federal agency staff,

         16  national associations and advocacy groups to retain and

         17  fully fund CSBG as a distinct program, as well as

         18  supporting other programs slated for consolidation.

         19                 As a compliment to this Administration's

         20  aggressive efforts at the federal level, the Mayor has

         21  directed DYCD to mount a public education campaign to

         22  support efforts at the local level to preserve CSBG.

         23                 In conclusion, I'd like to thank you for

         24  the opportunity to discuss the DYCD Community Services

         25  Block Grant Program and the efforts of the Bloomberg
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          2  Administration to save this initiative. We are pleased

          3  to answer any questions and address any comments you may

          4  have.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you,

          6  Commissioner.

          7                 Before we go to questions from my

          8  colleagues, I'm going to take advantage of the fact that

          9  we have a quorum of the Committee, and if none of my

         10  colleagues have an objection to doing it before we take

         11  other testimony, I'd like to go to a vote on the

         12  resolution.

         13                 Okay. All right, I am, obviously, as a

         14  co-sponsor of this resolution with a number of you, and

         15  especially Council Member Martinez, strongly

         16  recommending a yes vote on this resolution. I think we

         17  need to get this to the floor of the Council before the

         18  next possible meeting, and I think we need to raise the

         19  dialogue level on this as quickly and loudly as

         20  possible, and I urge a yes vote.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Proposed Resolution 890-A.

         22  Council Member Fidler.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye. And I'd like
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          2  to be added as a sponsor, if that's possible.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gerson.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Aye, with an

          5  acknowledgment and appreciation to our Chair Lew Fidler,

          6  and our joint author of the resolution, Council Member

          7  Martinez.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Again, Mr.

          9  Chair, I want to thank you for your leadership on the

         10  issue and ensuring that we have a speedy hearing on this

         11  resolution, and the Committee staff for working with my

         12  staff in making sure we have the right language and the

         13  right numbers on the impact of not having these dollars

         14  restored. So, I vote aye on all, and I want to thank my

         15  colleagues, also.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vann.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Arroyo.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: By a vote of six

         20  in the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         21  abstentions, the item is adopted.

         22                 Council Members, please sign the

         23  Committee report. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: We'll hold the vote

         25  open for any members who come later on.
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          2                 And Council Member Arroyo, just because

          3  you're new doesn't mean you get a microphone, so feel

          4  free to --

          5                 Okay, Commissioner, first, give our best

          6  to Commissioner Mullgrav. We always like to see her and

          7  wish her well. Has DYCD taken any steps with the NDAs or

          8  the providers that get CSBG money to make them prepared

          9  for cutbacks?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: Well, as I said

         11  earlier, DYCD has been engaged in an aggressive public

         12  education campaign to apprise all of the stakeholders in

         13  CSBG of the situation in Congress and at the White

         14  House. So, in fact, we have called and hosted, or

         15  co-hosted with some of our community-based organizations

         16  meetings, informational meetings, to give basically a

         17  run-down of all of the pertinent facts so that people,

         18  so that the advocacy community and the CBOs understand

         19  what's at stake, and can make their own decisions about

         20  how to fight it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I know the Brooklyn

         22  Council Delegation has been sitting and hearing from

         23  many of our CBOs for the last couple of weeks, who are

         24  coming forward with budget requests. I imagine the other

         25  delegation has been doing the same. Some of those groups
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          2  have indicated that DYCD has told them exactly how much

          3  money they would lose if this proposal passed Congress

          4  as presently funded.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: No. What we

          6  have said, I think what people may be looking at is we

          7  produced a fact sheet, both a general fact sheet about

          8  CSBG Citywide, but also fact sheets for each

          9  congressional member of the New York Delegation,

         10  describing the funding in their respective areas, and

         11  the CBOs that would be affected were this program to be

         12  consolidated or cut.

         13                 We would never at this point tell anyone

         14  what the exact financial effect would be of any of these

         15  scenarios at the federal level, because at this point we

         16  don't really know what the final scenario is going to

         17  be.

         18                 There are a few different things that

         19  could happen. We could have the enactment of the

         20  Strengthening Americas Communities Block Grant, in which

         21  case the effect, the ultimate effect on CSBG would be

         22  unclear.

         23                 At that point, CSBG would be in

         24  competition with the 17 other community development and

         25  related programs for funding, and we wouldn't be able to
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          2  say at this point how that would come out.

          3                 Another alternative scenario is that we

          4  could have the Strengthening Americas Block Grant not

          5  happen at all, or we could have a new Strengthening

          6  Americas Communities Block Grant, where CSBG was left

          7  out of that mix.

          8                 So, any of those could happen. And then

          9  at that point, that doesn't say anything about what the

         10  ultimate level of funding would be.

         11                 So, for that reason, we're not in a

         12  position to say to any of the community-based

         13  organizations that we fund, what the exact financial

         14  implications would be for them.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: We've been joined by

         16  Council Member Brewer, who, although not a member of

         17  this Committee, is a co-sponsor of this resolution, and

         18  a very strong advocate in this issue.

         19                 You know, you laid out a number of

         20  scenarios, and indicated that we don't really know

         21  what's happening.

         22                 Did you tell us, other than the broad

         23  overview that you mentioned in your initial testimony,

         24  just what efforts the Bloomberg Administration is making

         25  to make sure that this initiative does not pass, and if
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          2  it does, that it's funded fully?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: As I said in my

          4  testimony, Mayor Bloomberg has made CSBG and its, the

          5  other program, community development block grant, CDBG,

          6  both of which is slated to go into this new block, the

          7  President's new block grant.

          8                 He's made the preserving of these

          9  programs a top priority. His legislative staff has been

         10  aggressively working on the hill with all of the

         11  relevant stakeholders. They've been in numerous meetings

         12  with White House officials, they have been meeting with

         13  the federal agency staff that are responsible for these

         14  programs, they have been meeting with the key

         15  congressional representatives, not only with New York

         16  Delegation, but with key republicans and democrats on

         17  the committees that are looking at this now, and the

         18  Mayor's Office has also been working in a coalition with

         19  a broad range of groups that have made the preservation

         20  of CSBG a priority, that would include such groups as

         21  the US Conference of Mayors, the National League of

         22  Cities, the National Association of Counties, the

         23  National Association of Local Housing Finance Agencies,

         24  the National Association for County, Community and

         25  Economic Development, the National Community Development
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          2  Association. There are others, I could go on. But

          3  suffice it to say, there is a broad coalition of

          4  organizations working on the hill very aggressively to

          5  save all of the community development programs, in

          6  particular CSBG, from cuts or elimination through a

          7  folding into the block grant.

          8                 We have also, the Mayor has also written

          9  a letter to various Senate and House Committees,

         10  expressing his strong opposition to the folding in of

         11  CDBG and CSBG into the new Strengthening Americas

         12  Communities Block Grant.

         13                 At our level, at DYCD's level, as I say,

         14  we have been trying to do as much around public

         15  education as we can. We produced a fact sheet, a

         16  one-page fact sheet on CSBG in New York City, as well as

         17  a congressional district-by-district breakdown of CSBG

         18  funding, and the organizations that would be affected if

         19  this money were terminated.

         20                 We have met with representatives of the

         21  CBOs. We have called a large meeting of the NAB, all the

         22  NABs around the City, a few weeks ago, to discuss this

         23  very issue. And we're ready to do whatever we can. This

         24  is a top priority for all of us.

         25                 Well, I'm glad to hear that the efforts
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          2  seem to be comprehensive. The Bush Administration

          3  doesn't tend to be responsive to me. They have many

          4  better reasons to be responsive to the Mayor. So, having

          5  heard all of these efforts and this outreach, what has

          6  been the response?

          7                 I mean, is there any reason to be

          8  optimistic that President Bush has the vaguest idea of

          9  what affect this is going to have in our communities?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: Well, you never

         11  want to be prematurely optimistic, but we do know that

         12  there were budget resolutions passed by both the Senate

         13  and the House, and the Senate resolution specifically

         14  said that it made no assumptions about the eventual

         15  block granting of these programs, which I am told by the

         16  Mayor's Legislative staff is tantamount to them saying

         17  that they reject the idea of block granting the CDBG and

         18  CSBG into this new block grant.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Just so I'm clear,

         20  and the Administration takes the position that they're

         21  against the consolidation as a matter of theory in

         22  addition to the financial impact it could have; is that

         23  correct?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: Yes. The Mayor

         25  has made clear that his opposition is both to CSBG being
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          2  folded into the larger new block grant, because it

          3  doesn't really belong. It's a human services program,

          4  it's not a classic community economic development bricks

          5  and mortar program.

          6                 So, it doesn't fit. Even if you thought

          7  that some of these other programs could be block

          8  granted, it wouldn't fit.

          9                 However, he's gone further than that. He

         10  said that in fact a lot of the programs that are slated

         11  for consolidation into the new block grant are worthy

         12  programs that large cities depend upon, and work very

         13  well to empower low-income communities and individuals

         14  and has, he has opposed the block grant on the grounds

         15  that it would, in fact, result in a significant

         16  reduction in funding for all of those programs.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Last August DYCD

         18  issued an RFP for CSBG funding for the redrawn NDAs; can

         19  you tell us what the status of that process is?

         20                 Was that a general enough question for

         21  MOC? I don't want to, you know --

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: Right. I think

         23  it's safe to say that we are almost finished with the

         24  evaluation process and we're moving towards identifying

         25  awardees under the RFP.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: And at what funding

          3  level? I mean, are you anticipating doing it? Because

          4  you really indicated a great uncertainty in your mind as

          5  to what's going to happen and what the funding level is

          6  going to be, and I'm not even sure I know how this is

          7  treated in the Mayor's Preliminary Budget. Is he

          8  assuming full funding? Is DYCD assuming full funding and

          9  issuing contracts at that level? If so, are the

         10  contracts going to indicate the funding could be reduced

         11  proportionately; what are we doing?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: Well, as I may

         13  have mentioned earlier, the State, Department of State

         14  Office of Community Services is our oversight agency for

         15  the entire state, and they have directed us to assume

         16  full funding, and so that is what we are going to do.

         17  Our intention is to enter into contracts with the CBOs

         18  who went under this current RFP, effective July 1st. And

         19  at this point because of the uncertainty, the only path

         20  that really makes sense is to assume full funding,

         21  obviously with a proviso that if the federal funding

         22  picture alters dramatically, we may have to revisit

         23  this. That would always have to be an escape hatch that

         24  you would have to have in any contract.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: How would you revisit

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  it? Would you revisit it with proportional cuts, or

          3  would you revisit it like cancelling entire contracts?

          4  Or would you revisit it by proposing that City tax levy

          5  money replace the missing federal dollars.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: At this point

          7  we're keeping all of our options open. Any of the

          8  options that you named are possibilities. Without

          9  knowing whether it's going to be cut, and if it's going

         10  to be cut, how much it's going to be cut, or indeed

         11  whether it's going to exist at all, it's hard to say

         12  what option makes the most sense.

         13                 You know, a large cut might dictate or

         14  might lead us to think that one particular set of

         15  options is the right one. A small cut might mean that an

         16  across-the-board proportional reduction across all

         17  contracts is what makes most sense. It's really not

         18  something at this point that we can make a decision

         19  about.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Do we have our target

         21  date for the release of the awards?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: No.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Okay. Got a ball park

         24  for the release of the awards?

         25                 I mean, this is a contract that you
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          2  anticipate will start on July 1, 2005. So, I mean --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: Spring.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Spring is here.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: True enough.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: So we're not going to

          7  get an answer on that one, huh? Okay.

          8                 I guess if any of my colleagues have

          9  questions? I will start with Council Member Martinez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes, thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair.

         12                 I just wanted to ask, let's give the

         13  worst case scenario that the Administration gets away

         14  with not restoring these dollars; have you guys started

         15  thinking about a contingency plan?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: Contingency?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I mean, we're

         18  looking at a pattern from this Administration, which

         19  we're looking at the services that address issues and

         20  needs in the community where we have a large percentage

         21  of poverty and usually what we find is we see this

         22  Administration turning their back on these services.

         23                 Not the Bloomberg Administration.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: I understand.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I'm talking
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          2  about the Bush  Administration. Let's get that clear.

          3  Federal government. Has the Administration started

          4  contemplating a contingency plan? And I know you

          5  mentioned the aggressive lobbying that the

          6  Administration is doing in Washington, has there been

          7  any contact with the Congressional Delegation, by the

          8  Administration, on this issue also?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: I presume that

         10  -- well, we are in touch regularly with the Mayor's

         11  Legislative Affairs Office in Washington, and we know

         12  they are talking regularly to the New York Delegation.

         13                 In addition, I'd like to mention that two

         14  New York members of the New York Congressional

         15  Delegation sit on our own Community Action Board,

         16  Congressman Reingall, and Congressman Towns. So, in

         17  fact, the New York Delegation is well aware and apprised

         18  of this and are very supportive of all of our efforts.

         19                 I know that the Legislative Affairs

         20  Office yesterday told us in particular that Senators

         21  Clinton and Schumer had weighed in on this issue very

         22  strongly. So...

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And the

         24  Governor, has he said anything?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: I have no
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          2  information on that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: All right. Thank

          4  you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Anybody else?

          6                 Council Member Brewer.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 Just talking about, what Mike Bradley

         10  thing is going to happen in Washington? What's his take?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Oh, excuse those of

         12  us who are ignorant. Who is Mike Bradley?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Mike Bradley is

         14  the only person who really knows CSBG. He's head of the

         15  organization that's been working on CSBG for 30 years,

         16  something like that, and I work with him.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Okay.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, that's why I'm

         19  being very clear, there's no human being in the world

         20  who knows CSBG and Congress like Mike Bradley.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: And there's no human

         22  being in the world who knows more people than Council

         23  Member Brewer. That's why I asked who he was.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Sorry. But they know

         25  who he is.
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          2                 So, what is his take on all of this?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: Well, actually,

          4  I was at a legislative conference hosted by the National

          5  Community Action Foundation --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: That's his

          7  organization. Go ahead.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: In fact,

          9  everything that I really said this morning is informed

         10  by what he told us. It's a long, it is a long fight. It

         11  might not be over -- we may not know the resolution

         12  until the end of September.

         13                 As anyone who is familiar with the

         14  legislative process in Washington knows, the budget

         15  resolution is really just the beginning. They still have

         16  a reauthorization fight to go through, and CSBG is up

         17  for reauthorization and it's not at all clear that it

         18  will be reauthorized.

         19                 Whether it's reauthorized or not,

         20  however, and this assumes that it's not consolidated

         21  into a block grant, if it is reauthorized or not, it

         22  would still have to go through the Appropriations

         23  Committee, and, you know.

         24                 So, we have at least three stages. We

         25  have a budget stage, which right now we've had some
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          2  early promising signs on; we have a reauthorization

          3  stage which we don't really know yet what's going on

          4  there; and, of course, the last stage is appropriations.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The real key is

          6  republicans. Because over the years, the republicans

          7  have supported CSBG, more than CDBG.

          8                 So, my question is, to pick up on Council

          9  Member Martinez, in terms of the Governor, do you attend

         10  the statewide CSBG meetings?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: I'm sorry?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Do you attend and

         13  participate in the Statewide CSBG meetings with the

         14  Department of State?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: We've attended

         16  some of them.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So do you

         18  participate and know what the Governor is doing? Because

         19  traditionally that's where a lot of support has come

         20  from, the republicans.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: As I say --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So you go to some

         23  of those.

         24                 Go ahead.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: We have been
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          2  instructed by our oversight agency, which is the Office

          3  of Community Services, to assume full funding going

          4  forward.

          5                 We are in the process now of putting in

          6  our refunding application to the State, and we are going

          7  to be asking for the same level of funding as we did

          8  before.

          9                 Beyond that, I really can't speak as to

         10  what the Governor is doing.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: That's where the

         12  problem is.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: What was that? You

         14  said you don't have a clue as to what the Governor is

         15  doing?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: I said I can't

         17  speak to what the Governor is doing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Oh, okay.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Those are the kind

         20  of things --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I would say I don't

         22  have a clue as to what the Governor is doing. I can say

         23  that, you can't.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm just saying

         25  that's where the discussion is made, is at that
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          2  statewide CSBG meetings. That's what I was asking.

          3                 So, do you know when the last one of

          4  those meetings was, by any chance?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: No, I'm sorry.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So you haven't

          7  been participating, or you don't find them that helpful;

          8  is that the idea?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: We are in

         10  constant contact with the state. We have a regular line

         11  of communication with the State, and we are not out of

         12  the loop at all with regard to what the state is doing.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I used to chair

         14  that organization, so I'm familiar with it.

         15                 The other question is, in terms of

         16  technology, I know that that is an aspect of the RFP

         17  that was cut, and I'm just wondering, how are you going

         18  to -- in other words, when you did the request for

         19  proposal and suggested that group supply, there isn't a

         20  focus on technical assistance or technology. So, I'm

         21  just wondering, when in fact the RFP is awarded, how

         22  will some of these organizations improve their

         23  technology for the 21st Century?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LYNN: I'm not sure I

         25  understand what you're referring to.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          3                 When the RFP went out, there are certain

          4  categories that are premiere in your mind as to who can

          5  apply to respond, in terms of community-based

          6  organizations, and those that supply technical

          7  assistance, just for technology, are not part of the top

          8  priority list.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Are you referring to

         10  the OST RFP?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Well, yes, but

         12  also for this one. My understanding is also for this

         13  one. No, this one too.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: The NDA RFP, okay.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right. No, it's

         16  not OST.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: NDA came out last

         18  August, you said last month.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm sorry, I meant

         20  recently. I apologize. No, it's just for the DYCD.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: A separate one. Oh,

         22  okay.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER COLTER: Assistant

         24  Commissioner for Operations at DYCD. I believe you're

         25  referring to our Technical Assistance RFP, which in fact
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          2  is funded with community services block grant dollars,

          3  so is relevant to this discussion.

          4                 What we did in preparation for that RFP

          5  was we got input from our senior contract managers, we

          6  looked at the uptake and participation of folks in the

          7  various program offerings, and we looked also at what

          8  other organizations in the City are providing in terms

          9  of services.

         10                 Once upon a time, say five or ten years

         11  ago, most of, and many of our CSBG funded contractors

         12  lacked infrastructure in information technology. And,

         13  so, IT was one of the elements of our technical

         14  assistance offerings.

         15                 Fast forward to 2005, what we see is not

         16  only more expertise on the ground, but many more

         17  organizations in New York City offering technical

         18  assistance around IT. Meanwhile, the demands on our

         19  agency have increased, you know, witness the transfer of

         20  youth employment programs to DYCD and the fact that we

         21  weren't offering any technical assistance around

         22  workforce development. Also other needs.

         23                 So, the long and the short of it is, we

         24  did eliminate information technology from the technical

         25  assistance RFP. And we reallocated those funds to other
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          2  emerging needs including workforce development.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Just for the

          4  record, I feel very strongly that that was not a good

          5  decision. What happens is, yes, folks may be up to par,

          6  but every single day technology changes. VoiceOver IP.

          7  You give that word to your contractees, they don't know

          8  what that is. I could go through a long list, I don't

          9  want to be pulling out terms, of what is changing, and

         10  today it's one thing, and literally tomorrow is the

         11  second thing. So, Wi-Max, Wi-Fi, the list is endless.

         12  Nobody can keep up with this without technical

         13  assistance.

         14                 And I worry, as I have said many times,

         15  that they need this kind of support.

         16                 They maybe have computers that are three

         17  years old, and they are going to be outdated, et cetera.

         18  So we really do need that kind of technical assistance.

         19                 I know the process, we've had many

         20  discussions, I feel very strongly that that was not a

         21  good decision. And I think some of your non-profits are

         22  going to suffer as a result.

         23                 There isn't that much, particularly for

         24  free. What you do is end up hiring a consultant who is

         25  here today and gone tomorrow. And what you need is some
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          2  kind of sustainability so these non-profits can build an

          3  infrastructure that does allow them to go into the

          4  future.

          5                 I was just at a meeting this morning with

          6  somebody complaining because they don't know what to do.

          7                 So, I just want to make, on the record, I

          8  don't think that was a good decision.

          9                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER COLTER: So noted.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Council Member Brewer

         12  has a point. Nothing changes more than technology.

         13                 Any other questions? If not, thank you

         14  very much. Please give our very best to the

         15  Commissioner, and we look forward to seeing here soon.

         16                 We have one panel of witnesses that we'd

         17  like to call together.

         18                 We have Joel Berg from the New York City

         19  Coalition Against Hunger. Our favorite standby Susan

         20  Stamler, from United Neighborhood Houses, and Elana

         21  Broitman from the UJA Federation of New York.

         22                 Did Joel have to leave? Well, we

         23  apologize to Mr. Berg. We were about as efficient as

         24  we've ever been with a City agency. So... The mic is

         25  yours.
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          2                 MS. STAMLER: Hi. Good morning. My name is

          3  Susan Stamler. I'm the Director of Policy and Advocacy

          4  with United Neighborhood Houses. We're the federation of

          5  36 settlement houses and neighborhood centers throughout

          6  the City.

          7                 We heard all the specifics, and I don't

          8  want to go through them because we know that you can

          9  read, and in our testimony we put all the impact data

         10  and the concerns that we have about losing CSBG funding.

         11  But I actually want to put a little face on what this

         12  money does in our communities, and for United

         13  Neighborhood House members, these dollars are critical

         14  to maintaining the daily services in our community,

         15  whether the staff walk-in offices that serve people in

         16  housing, public benefits counseling, pleading

         17  complicated government eligibility forums, running ESL

         18  classes and citizenship programs, providing older teens

         19  with college and career counseling, expanding

         20  Meals-On-Wheels Programs, or designing programs for

         21  immigrant teens, we know that these programs are

         22  essential.

         23                 I think we're missing one of the points

         24  here, and we're really thrilled to see the Council

         25  resolution, but one of the points is that the Bush
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          2  Administration and its congressional allies have

          3  launched a major attack against poor and low-income

          4  people. The block grant game is just one of many losing

          5  propositions for poor people. And while states receive

          6  less money, they gain more authority to reduce benefits,

          7  limit eligibility or promote rules that make receiving

          8  benefits more difficult in order to control costs.

          9                 And the proposed federal budget has more

         10  tax cuts for corporations for the wealthy, while at the

         11  same time it attacks spending on mandatory programs.

         12                 The 2006 budget has devastating impacts

         13  for communities. Under the House Budget Resolution New

         14  York could lose billions of dollars from some of the

         15  most basic mandatory programs that serve low-income

         16  people. Based on the negotiations in the House

         17  Agriculture Committee, New York could potentially lose

         18  between 201 and 402 million dollars in food stamp money.

         19  There is millions of dollars threatened for Medicaid,

         20  for TANF and a whole host of programs.

         21                 Even if this doomsday scenario is

         22  partially correct, New York stands to lose a great deal

         23  of federal funding that supports a safety net for the

         24  most vulnerable people in our communities. The assault

         25  on poor people is despicable.
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          2                 And while I applaud the City Council for

          3  your resolution supporting the funding for the community

          4  services block grant, I actually want to urge you to do

          5  more.

          6                 I'm usually here with recommendations to

          7  fund programs or to change policies, so I really thought

          8  long and hard what we could recommend to do together.

          9                 So, I urge you as our elected

         10  representatives to use your community resources and

         11  stand up for New York. We must work together to protect

         12  our communities and let the country know that the

         13  President and the leaders of Congress have the wrong

         14  priorities.

         15                 Number one, we need to strategically

         16  capitalize on New York City's media market. As elected

         17  officials, you, along with your fellow state and federal

         18  electeds, must make your voices heard. Not a week should

         19  pass by without an op ed letter to the editor or some

         20  article about the likely impact of the proposed federal

         21  budget cut for New York.

         22                 We also should adopt a state, and

         23  coincidentally, we have 51 members of the City Council,

         24  and I believe that you guys could adopt a state program,

         25  including the District of Columbia, where you target the
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          2  major media markets in each state, again, with the

          3  messages of what the Bush Budget is doing for

          4  communities.

          5                 And then, lastly, I want to urge that New

          6  York should march on Washington. We're loud and we're

          7  proud and New York's electeds should make sure that

          8  every constituent newsletter, legislative report, or any

          9  communication, includes an update on the dangers of the

         10  proposed federal budget and what it could mean for New

         11  York.

         12                 We must then take our voices to

         13  Washington by bus loads. We just go there and protest

         14  the cuts and programs and services that have and

         15  continue to keep our communities strong.

         16                 I think we have a responsibility to get

         17  off the sidelines and lead them in the front of the

         18  march, and we stand ready to work with you.

         19                 Thank you for your resolution, and thank

         20  you for this opportunity.

         21                 MS. BROITMAN: Good evening. My name is

         22  Elana Broitman, and I'm the Director of City Policy and

         23  Public Affairs at the UJA Federation of New York. Thank

         24  you for inviting us to make a presentation to you today.

         25                 As you know, UJA Federation of New York
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          2  is one of the largest philanthropic institutions of its

          3  kind. We depend entirely on private philanthropy, which

          4  we use to support over 100 agencies in New York City,

          5  from Citywide human service agencies and community

          6  councils, to neighborhood community centers, Ys,

          7  hospitals, geriatric centers camps and day schools.

          8                 The agencies, however, no matter how

          9  generous the philanthropic funding, just depend on

         10  government funding, in order to provide services to

         11  diverse communities throughout New York City.

         12                 That's precisely why UJA Federation of

         13  New York is so concerned for the viability of the

         14  community service block grant program, which helps

         15  support a number of these organizations.

         16                 I don't want to go through the facts that

         17  the preceding witnesses have gone through before, so I

         18  will skip much of my testimony, but I do want to note,

         19  for example, some of the organizations around the City

         20  that are under risk of having this significant source of

         21  funding cut.

         22                 There are agencies such as the New York

         23  Association for New Americans, the Forest Hills

         24  Community House or AIDS Center of Queens County, the

         25  Bedford Park Multi-Service Center for Senior Citizens,
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          2  the West Bronx Housing and Neighborhood Resource Center,

          3  the Woody Crest Center for Human Development, the

          4  Mid-Bronx Community Preservation Coalition, and many,

          5  many, many more.

          6                 This is so important to the UJA

          7  federation that in fact yesterday be brought a group of

          8  30 people to Washington to talk to Congressmen and women

          9  on both sides of the aisle, inside New York, the New

         10  York Delegation, and outside of it, and this was one of

         11  our only four agenda items to speak to them about.

         12                 So, we stand ready to assist you in any

         13  way that we can, and we applaud you for passing this

         14  resolution, and want to be helpful in any way that we

         15  can.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you, both of

         18  your testimony. I do want to tell you, Susan, that we

         19  agree with you about the need to raise the dialogue on

         20  this, and today I guess is the first step. The second

         21  step will be on the steps of City Hall at 1:30 on Monday

         22  when we hold a press conference on this issue calling on

         23  the Bush Administration and Congress to reorder its

         24  priorities, and to fully fund CSBG. I know we'll be

         25  joined by Congressman Reingal and a number of other
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          2  elected officials, and hopefully we will be taking

          3  advantage of the New York media market to begin the

          4  process of creating a public dialogue on this.

          5                 Obviously we all agree as to everything

          6  that you said, and everything that our resolution vote

          7  today indicates. I have in front of me a list of CBOs

          8  that received money from CSBG, the City of New York. The

          9  list includes almost every social services CBO that we

         10  have, if I were to read down the list, every Council

         11  Member would identify one, two, three, five, in his or

         12  her district, as being a vital service provider, and the

         13  programs include HIV planning, violence intervention,

         14  immigrant women, legal assistance, youth development,

         15  civics and literacy, training and technical assistance.

         16  Council Member Brewer left. And legal services to

         17  undocumented youth in foster care, immigrant youth, you

         18  name it. These are things, nutrition, parent education

         19  and family support, substance abuse education, adult

         20  pre-employment skills, adult literacy, senior services.

         21  I mean, all the things that we fight here to fund, and,

         22  again, I don't want to be parochial, Brooklyn sat for

         23  three days and listened to 150 groups come in and plead

         24  for 25 or 50,000 dollars in expense money to help them

         25  provide these services, and I see dozens and dozens of
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          2  those groups on this list who stand to lose a lot more

          3  than $50,000 if these programs are cut, so it becomes

          4  far more important not to diminish the importance of

          5  what we do as a delegation or as a Council to fund some

          6  of these programs. But if the federal government pulls

          7  the plug, it's all going to go down the drain. So, we

          8  really need to step up the dialogue.

          9                 Do any of my colleagues have questions

         10  for either of these witnesses?

         11                 Councilman Gallagher, would you like to

         12  vote on the resolution?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: I will vote on

         14  the resolution.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Council Member

         16  Gallagher.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: I vote aye.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Okay. I believe the

         19  Committee report is downstairs.  I think that changes

         20  the vote to seven in the affirmative, none in the

         21  negative.

         22                 Thank you both. I do believe that

         23  concludes our testimony and our meeting.

         24                 I want to thank the Committee's staff,

         25  Laura Popa, Perry Stein, Andy Wallace, for their usual
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          2  excellent work. And I do want to say again, I know that

          3  we have, you know, the Neilson ratings tell me that we

          4  have many, many dozens of people watching this at home,

          5  and when you wake up tomorrow morning, you know, send a

          6  letter to your Congressman, send a letter to your

          7  senators, but most importantly, send a letter to

          8  President Bush, telling him that your City and your

          9  country, we don't pull the plug on the people that need

         10  it the most, that the CSBG program is important, and

         11  that it be continued. That's how you can help. Thank you

         12  very much. This meeting is adjourned.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 11:15 a.m.)

         14                 (The following written testimony was read

         15  into the record.)

         16

         17

         18  Written Testimony Of:

         19  Joel Berg

         20  Executive Director

         21  NYC Coalition Against Hunger

         22

         23                 I am Joel Berg, Executive Director of the

         24  New York City Coalition Against Hunger (NYCCAH), which

         25  represents the more than 1,200 food pantries and soup

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            46

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  kitchens in New York City, and the more than one million

          3  low-income New Yorkers who are forced to utilize them.

          4  This testimony, opposing cuts in federal Community

          5  Services Block Grant (CSBG funding, is submitted on

          6  their behalf.

          7                 I have also served for the past few years

          8  on Neighborhood Advisory Board #6 in Brooklyn, and have

          9  been appointed recently to the citywide Community Action

         10  Board. Given how the missions of those two boards are so

         11  intertwined with CSBG funding, I also bring the

         12  experience of my work on those boards to this testimony.

         13                 My testimony today will focus on basic

         14  two points:

         15                 1) Given that poverty and hunger are

         16  continuing to increase throughout New York City, this is

         17  the worst possible time to cut CSBG funding to the city.

         18                 2) Mayor Bloomberg must take a

         19  high-profile leadership role in convincing his allies to

         20  drop their support for these cuts.

         21                 Poverty and Hunger are Increasing in New

         22  York City

         23                 Even before September 11, more than 1.7

         24  million New Yorkers lived below the federal poverty

         25  line, and more than one million were forced to utilize
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          2  charitable pantries and kitchens.

          3                 According to the most comprehensive

          4  annual survey of local hunger (conducted by NYCCAH), the

          5  number of people fed at the city's pantries and kitchens

          6  rose by 48% from 2000-2003. That number rose an

          7  additional 9% from 2003-2004, indicating that any

          8  economic recovery has yet, in a significant way, to aid

          9  the New Yorkers with the lowest-incomes.

         10                 The fastest-growing populations at these

         11  agencies are working parents, children, and senior

         12  citizens. While the public often uses the terms "hungry"

         13  and "homeless" interchangeably, at last 90% of the

         14  people forced to utilize kitchens and pantries in the

         15  city do live in some sort of home; they simply don't

         16  have enough income to purchase all the food their

         17  families need.

         18                 Fully 81% of the city's pantries and

         19  kitchens said they faced at least some increased demand

         20  for food in 2004, with 52% saying the demand had

         21  increased "greatly." The number of people being fed by

         22  such agencies is now at record levels. Yet, in the last

         23  year, only 22% of the agencies obtained more food and

         24  funding, only 15% hired more staff, and only 27%

         25  obtained more volunteers. In fact, more than twice as
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          2  many agencies faced cuts in food and money as obtained

          3  increases.

          4                 This "food distribution resources gap"

          5  forced a record 48 agencies to shut down entirely,

          6  forcing their clients to either go hungry or look

          7  elsewhere for food. Of the agencies that were able to

          8  stay in business, limited resources forced more than

          9  half (53%) to ration their food by either turning away

         10  hungry New Yorkers, reducing portion sizes, and/or

         11  cutting hours of operation - a 20% increase since 2002

         12  in the number of agencies forced to ration food.

         13                 While, in previous years, the City's

         14  Human Resources Administration (HRA) disputed our annual

         15  survey, they now publish their own statistics on their

         16  web site for the more than 500 pantries and kitchens

         17  that receive EFAP funding. The City data shows that

         18  these agencies provided 12% more meals in the last two

         19  months of 2004 (1.919 million meals) than in the last

         20  two months of 2003 (1.718 million meals).

         21                 While CSBG funding does not generally

         22  directly supply food, it does fund a wide variety of

         23  other anti-hunger programs; when these programs are cut,

         24  low-income New Yorkers have less money to pay for basic

         25  expenses, including food, and are more likely to face
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          2  hunger.

          3                 Additionally, in both my years of service

          4  on Neighborhood Advisory Board #6 in Brooklyn, and my

          5  very brief service on the citywide Community Action

          6  Board, I have had the chance to learn more about the

          7  effective programs and grass-roots nonprofit groups

          8  supported by CSBG funds. Having helped conduct

          9  neighborhood hearings on the need for more funding for

         10  youth development, health care, education, and other

         11  services, it is clear that this funding needs to be

         12  increased. Such funding certainly should not be cut so

         13  that the federal government can fund ever-increasing tax

         14  cuts tot he mega-rich, which seems to be the main reason

         15  that the U.S. House of Representatives voted to enact

         16  these cuts.

         17                 Need for Personal Leadership from Mayor

         18  Bloomberg.

         19                 I thank the Council for its leadership in

         20  holding these high-profile hearings to oppose the cuts,

         21  and I urge all members of the Council to vote for the

         22  resolution opposing them.

         23                 I have been told that Mayor Bloomberg

         24  also opposes these cuts, and I am grateful for that, but

         25  I must respectfully suggest that, given that he is the
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          2  Mayor of the city in the nation that would lose the most

          3  funding as a result of these cuts, and further given

          4  that the cuts have been championed by allies of his  he

          5  should take a personal leadership role in defeating

          6  them.

          7                 At the March 21, 2005 meeting of the

          8  Community Action Board, I was distressed to learn from

          9  leadership of the Department of Youth and Community

         10  Development (DYCD) that, even though the cuts had

         11  already passed the U.S. House of Representatives, Mayor

         12  Bloomberg had not yet sent a letter to Congress opposing

         13  them.

         14                 Consequently, at that meeting, I

         15  introduced a resolution requesting the Mayor to take

         16  more of a leadership role on this issue, and it was

         17  adopted unanimously by the Community Action Board.

         18                 Specifically, the resolution passed by

         19  the Community Action Board called upon Mayor Bloomberg,

         20  in the two weeks following that meeting, to travel to

         21  Washington, D.C. to:

         22                 1) Hold a public press conference clearly

         23  communicating his opposition to these cuts.

         24                 2) Request personal meetings with

         25  President Bush, Speaker of the House Hastert, and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  Senator Majority Leader Frist to personally express the

          3  depth of his opposition to these cuts.

          4                 I also hope that the Mayor will

          5  personally raise this issue with Congressman Fosella, an

          6  ally of the Mayor who happens to be the only Member of

          7  the New York City delegation in Congress who has voted

          8  in favor of these cuts.

          9                 It is certainly helpful that the Mayor

         10  has directed DYCD to oppose these cuts. But, as recent

         11  history has shown, when it is important to the Mayor to

         12  accomplish a given policy goal, he does more than

         13  delegate that goal to an agency. After all, the buck

         14  stops at City hall.

         15                 With tens of millions of dollars

         16  dedicated to the lowest-income New Yorkers at risk of

         17  disappearing, we all must take leadership roles in this

         18  fight.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 11:15 a.m.)

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and Notary Public in and for the State of New

         11  York, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and

         12  accurate transcript of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not related

         14  to any of the parties to this action by blood or

         15  marriage, and that I am in no way interested in the

         16  outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set

         18  my hand this 7th day of April 2005.

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25
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          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of New

         11  York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a true and

         12  accurate copy of the transcription of the audio tapes of

         13  this hearing.
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         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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